

Current regulatory language is in BLACK text.

Original Department edits are in GREEN text.

Proposed edits from subcommittee members are in PURPLE text.

Department edits to proposal are in RED text.

Edits based on subcommittee discussion are in RED text with BLUE highlight.

Strikethrough used to depict deleted text.

Definitions from Section 600.2

Teach-out: A period of time during which a program, institution, or institutional location that provides one hundred percent of at least one program offered engages in an orderly closure or when, following the closure of an institution or campus, another institution provides an opportunity for the students of the closed institution to complete their program, regardless of their academic progress at the time of closure. Eligible borrowers should never be prevented from accessing a closed school discharge (34 CFR 685.214) instead of a teach-out. Any school institution is prohibited from engaging in misrepresentation about the nature of the teach-out plans, teach-out agreements, and transfer of credit such as advertising any transfer options that have not been approved by the accreditor or misleading students about their ability to transfer credits.

Teach-out agreement: A written agreement between institutions that provides for the equitable treatment of students and a reasonable opportunity for students to complete their program of study if an institution, or an institutional location that provides one hundred percent of at least one program offered, ceases to operate or plans to cease operations before all enrolled students have completed their program of study. An accrediting agency is permitted to waive requirements regarding the percentage of credits which must be earned by a student at the institution awarding a degree or certification when a student is completing his or her program through a written teach-out agreement. The agreement must:

- (a) be made with an institution that meets financial responsibility standards as determined by that institution's agency and by the Secretary, and that the institution is not facing sanctions from the Secretary, the accrediting agency, and the state authorizing agency;
- (b) require that the institution will provide a complete list of students currently enrolled in each program and the estimated date of completion;
- (c) require the institution to provide a report to each student, that identifies the status of any unearned tuition, account balances, and refunds due to currently enrolled students;
- (d) demonstrate a plan to provide all potentially eligible students with closed school discharge forms in accordance with 34 CFR 685.214 and, if applicable, information on state refund policies;
- (e) require the institution to provide a record retention plan to all enrolled students that delineates the final disposition of teach out records (e.g., student transcripts, billing, financial aid records);
- (f) require the institution to refund to the Secretary or to students, as applicable, any tuition or fees that were not used in full;
- (g) require the institution to ensure that official transcripts and complete academic records have been provided to students at no cost to the student;
- (h) ensure that the teach-out institution provides information on the number and types of credits the institution is willing to accept teaching out the program allows students to transfer their credits; and
- (i) ensure that the teach-out institution teaching out the program will clearly provide state to students the tuition and fees of the with an educational program without additional costs for tuition and fees.

Current regulatory language is in BLACK text.

Original Department edits are in GREEN text.

Proposed edits from subcommittee members are in PURPLE text.

Department edits to proposal are in RED text.

Edits based on subcommittee discussion are in RED text with BLUE highlight.

Strikethrough used to depict deleted text.

Teach-out plan: A written plan developed by an institution that provides for the equitable treatment of students if an institution, or an institutional location that provides 100 percent of at least one program, ceases to operate **or plans to cease operations** before all **enrolled** students have completed their program of study, ~~and may include, if required by the institution's accrediting agency, a teach-out agreement between institutions.~~

Current regulatory language is in BLACK text.

Original Department edits are in GREEN text.

Proposed edits from subcommittee members are in PURPLE text.

Department edits to proposal are in RED text.

Edits based on subcommittee discussion are in RED text with BLUE highlight.

Strikethrough used to depict deleted text.

Regulations from Section 602.24

(c) Teach-out plans and agreements.

(1) The agency must require an institution it accredits or preaccredits to submit a teach-out plan as defined in 34 CFR 600.2 to the agency for approval upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

(i) The Secretary notifies the agency that the institution failed the financial responsibility standards in is not financially responsible, in accordance with 34 CFR Part 668, Subpart L;

~~(ii) The Secretary notifies the agency that the institution is required to provide financial protection to the Secretary; or~~

(iii) The agency acts to place an institution or program on a warning or equivalent status; or

(iv) The Secretary notifies the agency that it has placed the institution is participating in title IV, HEA programs under a provisional program participation agreement and the Secretary has required a teach-out plan as a condition of participation on Heightened Cash Monitoring I for reasons related to the institution's compliance with financial responsibility standards.

~~(v) The Secretary notifies the agency that it has placed the institution on Heightened Cash Monitoring II; or~~

~~(vi) The agency acts to place the program on probation, show cause, or an equivalent status.~~

(2) The agency must require an institution it accredits or preaccredits to submit a teach-out plan and teach-out agreement as defined in 34 CFR 600.2 to the agency for approval upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

~~(i) The Secretary notifies the agency that it has placed the institution on Heightened Cash Monitoring I for reasons related to the institution's compliance with financial responsibility standards;~~

(i) The Secretary notifies the agency that it has placed the institution on the reimbursement payment method under 34 CFR 668.162(c) or the heightened cash monitoring payment method requiring the Secretary's review of the institution's supporting documentation under 34 CFR 668.162(d)(2) Heightened Cash Monitoring II;

(ii) The Secretary notifies the agency that the Secretary has initiated an emergency action against an institution, in accordance with section 487(c)(1)(G) of the HEA, or an action to limit, suspend, or terminate an institution participating in any title IV, HEA program, in accordance with section 487(c)(1)(F) of the HEA, and that a teach-out plan is required;

~~(iii) The agency acts to place the program on probation, show cause, or an equivalent status;~~

(iv) The agency acts to withdraw, terminate, or suspend the accreditation or preaccreditation of the institution;

(v) The institution notifies the agency that it intends to cease operations entirely or close a location that provides one hundred percent of at least one program, including if the location is being moved and is considered by the State to be a closed school (which, depending upon

Current regulatory language is in BLACK text.

Original Department edits are in GREEN text.

Proposed edits from subcommittee members are in PURPLE text.

Department edits to proposal are in RED text.

Edits based on subcommittee discussion are in RED text with BLUE highlight.

Strikethrough used to depict deleted text.

~~State requirements, may or may not be treated as a teach-out or closed school) to a new location.; or~~

- (vi) A State licensing or authorizing agency notifies the agency that an institution's license or legal authorization to provide an educational program has been or will be revoked.
- (23) The agency must evaluate the teach-out plan to ensure it ~~provides for the equitable treatment of students under criteria established by the agency, specifies additional charges, if any, and provides for notification to the students of any additional charges:~~ includes a list of academic programs offered by the institution, and the names of other institutions that offer similar programs and that could potentially enter into a teach-out agreement with the institution.
- (4) The agency shall not permit an ~~receiving~~ institution to ~~provide serve as a teach-out plan partner~~ under the following conditions:
- (i) the institution ~~or program~~ is subject to the conditions in paragraphs (c)(1)(i), (c)(1)(iii), (c)(2)(i), or (c)(2)(ii);
 - (ii) the institution is on a warning, probation, show cause, ~~or equivalent status with its accrediting agency; or~~
 - (iii) the institution is under investigation related to academic quality, misrepresentation, fraud, or other severe matters by a law enforcement agency.
- (354) If the agency approves a teach-out plan that includes a program ~~or institution~~ that is accredited by another recognized accrediting agency, it must notify that accrediting agency of its approval.
- (465) The agency may require an institution it accredits or preaccredits to enter into a teach-out agreement as part of its teach-out plan.

~~(6) The agency must require the closing institution to include in its teach-out agreement—~~

- (i) ~~be made with an institution that meets financial responsibility standards as determined by that institution's agency and by the Secretary, and that the institution is not facing sanctions from the Secretary, the accrediting agency, and the state authorizing agency;~~
- (ii) ~~require that the institution will provide a complete list of students currently enrolled in each program and the estimated date of completion;~~
- (iii) ~~demonstrate a plan to provide all potentially eligible students with closed school discharge forms in accordance with 34 CFR 685.214 and, if applicable, information on state refund policies;~~
- (iv) ~~require the institution to provide a record retention plan to all enrolled students that delineates the final disposition of teach out records (e.g., student transcripts, billing, financial aid records);~~
- (v) ~~ensure that the teach-out institution provides information on the number and types of credits the institution is willing to accept; and~~

Current regulatory language is in BLACK text.

Original Department edits are in GREEN text.

Proposed edits from subcommittee members are in PURPLE text.

Department edits to proposal are in RED text.

Edits based on subcommittee discussion are in RED text with BLUE highlight.

Strikethrough used to depict deleted text.

(vi) ensure that the teach-out institution will clearly state to students the tuition and fees of the educational program.

(57)(i7) The agency must require an institution it accredits or preaccredits that enters into a teach-out agreement, either on its own or at the request of the agency, to submit that teach-out agreement for approval. The agency may approve the teach-out agreement only if the agreement ~~is between institutions that are accredited or preaccredited by a nationally recognized accrediting agency,~~ meets the requirements of 600.2 and 602.24(c)(2), is consistent with applicable standards and regulations, and provides for the equitable treatment of students by ensuring that— the teach-out institution ~~accepting students through the teach-out agreement~~-

(iA) ~~The teach-out institution has~~ Has the necessary experience, resources, and support services to—
(A) ~~P~~ provide an educational program that is of acceptable quality and reasonably similar in content, ~~structure,~~ delivery modality, and scheduling to that provided by the institution that is ceasing operations either entirely or at one of its locations,~~;~~ however, while an online option via an alternate delivery modality may be made available to students ~~enrolled in a closing ground-based program,~~ such an option is not sufficient unless ~~ground-based options~~ an option via the same delivery modality as the original educational program is ~~are~~ also provided;

(iiB) Has the capacity ~~is able to remain stable,~~ carry out its mission, and meet all obligations to existing students;

~~(B) Remain stable, carry out its mission, and meet all obligations to existing students; and~~

~~(ii) The teach-out institution demonstrates~~

~~(iii) Has not been subject to a show cause, probation, or an equivalent action by the agency during the prior two years, unless the action was rescinded by the agency or resolved by the institution to the satisfaction of the agency; and~~

(ivC) Demonstrates that it can provide students access to the program and services without requiring them to move or travel for substantial distances or durations (by mileage or travel time) and that it will provide students with information about additional charges, if any; and

~~(D) Agrees to accept the transfer of credits from the closing institution school.~~

~~(ii) An accrediting agency is permitted to waive requirements regarding the percentage of credits which must be earned by a student at the institution awarding a degree or certification when a student is completing his or her program through a written teach-out agreement.~~

(8) The agency shall not permit an receiving institution to provide serve as a teach-out institution ~~plan partner~~ under the following conditions:

(i) the institution ~~or program~~ is subject to the conditions in paragraphs (c)(1)(i), ~~(c)(1)(iii), (c)(2)(i), or (c)(2)(ii);~~

(ii) the institution is on a warning or equivalent status, or probation, show cause, or equivalent status with its accrediting agency; or

Current regulatory language is in BLACK text.

Original Department edits are in GREEN text.

Proposed edits from subcommittee members are in PURPLE text.

Department edits to proposal are in RED text.

Edits based on subcommittee discussion are in RED text with BLUE highlight.

Strikethrough used to depict deleted text.

(iii) the institution is under investigation related to academic quality, misrepresentation, fraud, or other severe matters by a law enforcement agency.

(89) Disclosures:

(†) The agency is provided with copies of ~~approves~~ all notifications from the institution related to the institution's closure or to teach-out options prior to disclosure to ensure the ~~disclosure~~ information accurately represents students' ability to transfer credits and may require corrections; and

~~(ii) The agency reviews evidence documentation to ensure that all students affected by the institution school closure receive notification from the institution of teach-out options approved by the agency.~~